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to unreasonably restrain the ability of
an unaffiliated video programming
vendor to compete fairly by discrimi-
nating in video programming distribu-
tion on the basis of affiliation or non-
affiliation of vendors in the selection,
terms, or conditions for carriage of
video programming provided by such
vendors.

§76.1302 Carriage
ceedings.

(a) Complaints. Any video program-
ming vendor or multichannel video
programming distributor aggrieved by
conduct that it believes constitute a
violation of the regulations set forth in
this subpart may commence an adju-
dicatory proceeding at the Commission
to obtain enforcement of the rules
through the filing of a complaint. The
complaint shall be filed and responded
to in accordance with the procedures
specified in §76.7 of this part with the
following additions or changes:

(b) Prefiling notice required. Any ag-
grieved video programming vendor or
multichannel video programming dis-
tributor intending to file a complaint
under this section must first notify the
potential defendant multichannel video
programming distributor that it in-
tends to file a complaint with the Com-
mission based on actions alleged to
violate one or more of the provisions
contained in §76.1301 of this part. The
notice must be sufficiently detailed so
that its recipient(s) can determine the
specific nature of the potential com-
plaint. The potential complainant
must allow a minimum of ten (10) days
for the potential defendant(s) to re-
spond before filing a complaint with
the Commission.

(c) Contents of complaint. In addition
to the requirements of §76.7, a carriage
agreement complaint shall contain:

(1) Whether the complainant is a
multichannel video programming dis-
tributor or video programming vendor,
and, in the case of a multichannel
video programming distributor, iden-
tify the type of multichannel video
programming distributor, the address
and telephone number of the complain-
ant, what type of multichannel video
programming distributor the defendant
is, and the address and telephone num-
ber of each defendant;
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(2) Evidence that supports complain-
ant’s belief that the defendant, where
necessary, meets the attribution stand-
ards for application of the carriage
agreement regulations;

(3) The complaint must be accom-
panied by appropriate evidence dem-
onstrating that the required notifica-
tion pursuant to paragraph (b) of this
section has been made.

(d) Prima facie case. In order to estab-
lish a prima facie case of a violation of
§76.1301, the complaint must contain
evidence of the following:

(1) The complainant is a video pro-
gramming vendor as defined in section
616(b) of the Communications Act of
1934, as amended, and §76.1300(e) or a
multichannel video programming dis-
tributor as defined in section 602(13) of
the Communications Act of 1934, as
amended, and §76.1300(d);

(2) The defendant is a multichannel
video programming distributor as de-
fined in section 602(13) of the Commu-
nications Act of 1934, as amended, and
§76.1300(d); and

(3)({) Financial interest. In a com-
plaint alleging a violation of
§76.1301(a), documentary evidence or
testimonial evidence (supported by an
affidavit from a representative of the
complainant) that supports the claim
that the defendant required a financial
interest in any program service as a
condition for carriage on one or more
of such defendant’s systems.

(ii) Exclusive rights. In a complaint al-
leging a violation of §76.1301(b), docu-
mentary evidence or testimonial evi-
dence (supported by an affidavit from a
representative of the complainant)
that supports the claim that the de-
fendant coerced a video programming
vendor to provide, or retaliated against
such a vendor for failing to provide, ex-
clusive rights against any other multi-
channel video programming distributor
as a condition for carriage on a system.

(iii) Discrimination. In a complaint al-
leging a violation of §76.1301(c):

(A) Evidence that the conduct alleged
has the effect of unreasonably restrain-
ing the ability of an unaffiliated video
programming vendor to compete fairly;
and

(B) (I) Documentary evidence or tes-
timonial evidence (supported by an af-
fidavit from a representative of the
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complainant) that supports the claim
that the defendant discriminated in
video programming distribution on the
basis of affiliation or non-affiliation of
vendors in the selection, terms, or con-
ditions for carriage of video program-
ming provided by such vendors; or

(2) (i) Evidence that the complainant
provides video programming that is
similarly situated to video program-
ming provided by a video programming
vendor affiliated (as defined in
§76.1300(a)) with the defendant multi-
channel video programming  dis-
tributor, based on a combination of
factors, such as genre, ratings, license
fee, target audience, target advertisers,
target programming, and other factors;
and

(i1) Bvidence that the defendant mul-
tichannel video programming dis-
tributor has treated the video program-
ming provided by the complainant dif-
ferently than the similarly situated,
affiliated video programming described
in paragraph (d)(3)(iii)(B)(2)(i) of this
section with respect to the selection,
terms, or conditions for carriage.

(e) Answer. (1) Any multichannel
video programming distributor upon
which a carriage agreement complaint
is served under this section shall an-
swer within sixty (60) days of service of
the complaint, unless otherwise di-
rected by the Commission.

(2) The answer shall address the relief
requested in the complaint, including
legal and documentary support, for
such response, and may include an al-
ternative relief proposal without any
prejudice to any denials or defenses
raised.

(f) Reply. Within twenty (20) days
after service of an answer, unless oth-
erwise directed by the Commission, the
complainant may file and serve a reply
which shall be responsive to matters
contained in the answer and shall not
contain new matters.

(g) Prima facie determination. (1) With-
in sixty (60) calendar days after the
complainant’s reply to the defendant’s
answer is filed (or the date on which
the reply would be due if none is filed),
the Chief, Media Bureau shall release a
decision determining whether the com-
plainant has established a prima facie
case of a violation of §76.1301.
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(2) The Chief, Media Bureau may toll
the sixty (60)-calendar-day deadline
under the following circumstances:

(i) If the complainant and defendant
jointly request that the Chief, Media
Bureau toll these deadlines in order to
pursue settlement discussions or alter-
native dispute resolution or for any
other reason that the complainant and
defendant mutually agree justifies toll-
ing; or

(ii) If complying with the deadline
would violate the due process rights of
a party or would be inconsistent with
fundamental fairness.

(3) A finding that the complainant
has established a prima facie case of a
violation of §76.1301 means that the
complainant has provided sufficient
evidence in its complaint to allow the
case to proceed to a ruling on the mer-
its.

(4) If the Chief, Media Bureau finds
that the complainant has not estab-
lished a prima facie case of a violation
of §76.1301, the Chief, Media Bureau
will dismiss the complaint.

(h) Time limit on filing of complaints.
Any complaint filed pursuant to this
subsection must be filed within one
year of the date on which one of the
following events occurs:

(1) The multichannel video program-
ming distributor enters into a contract
with a video programming distributor
that a party alleges to violate one or
more of the rules contained in this sec-
tion; or

(2) The multichannel video program-
ming distributor offers to carry the
video programming vendor’s program-
ming pursuant to terms that a party
alleges to violate one or more of the
rules contained in this section, and
such offer to carry programming is un-
related to any existing contract be-
tween the complainant and the multi-
channel video programming  dis-
tributor; or

(3) A party has notified a multi-
channel video programming distributor
that it intends to file a complaint with
the Commission based on violations of
one or more of the rules contained in
this section.

(1) Deadline for decision on the merits.
(1)) For program carriage complaints
that the Chief, Media Bureau decides
on the merits based on the complaint,
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answer, and reply without discovery,
the Chief, Media Bureau shall release a
decision on the merits within sixty (60)
calendar days after the Chief, Media
Bureau’s prima facie determination.

(ii) For program carriage complaints
that the Chief, Media Bureau decides
on the merits after discovery, the
Chief, Media Bureau shall release a de-
cision on the merits within 150 cal-
endar days after the Chief, Media Bu-
reau’s prima facie determination.

(iii) The Chief, Media Bureau may
toll these deadlines under the following
circumstances:

(A) If the complainant and defendant
jointly request that the Chief, Media
Bureau toll these deadlines in order to
pursue settlement discussions or alter-
native dispute resolution or for any
other reason that the complainant and
defendant mutually agree justifies toll-
ing; or

(B) If complying with the deadline
would violate the due process rights of
a party or would be inconsistent with
fundamental fairness.

(2) For program carriage complaints
that the Chief, Media Bureau refers to
an administrative law judge for an ini-
tial decision, the deadlines set forth in
§0.341(f) of this chapter apply.

(j) Remedies for violations—(1) Rem-
edies authorized. Upon completion of
such adjudicatory proceeding, the
Commission shall order appropriate
remedies, including, if necessary, man-
datory carriage of a video program-
ming vendor’s programming on defend-
ant’s video distribution system, or the
establishment of prices, terms, and
conditions for the carriage of a video
programming vendor’s programming.
Such order shall set forth a timetable
for compliance, and shall become effec-
tive upon release, unless any order of
mandatory carriage would require the
defendant multichannel video program-
ming distributor to delete existing pro-
gramming from its system to accom-
modate carriage of a video program-
ming vendor’s programming. In such
instances, if the defendant seeks review
of the staff, or administrative law
judge decision, the order for carriage of
a video programming vendor’s pro-
gramming will not become effective
unless and until the decision of the
staff or administrative law judge is
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upheld by the Commission. If the Com-
mission upholds the remedy ordered by
the staff or administrative law judge in
its entirety, the defendant will be re-
quired to carry the video programming
vendor’s programming for an addi-
tional period equal to the time elapsed
between the staff or administrative law
judge decision and the Commission’s
ruling, on the terms and conditions ap-
proved by the Commission.

(2) Additional sanctions. The remedies
provided in paragraph (j)(1) of this sec-
tion are in addition to and not in lieu
of the sanctions available under title V
or any other provision of the Commu-
nications Act.

(k) Petitions for temporary standstill.
(1) A program carriage complainant
seeking renewal of an existing pro-
gramming contract may file a petition
along with its complaint requesting a
temporary standstill of the price,
terms, and other conditions of the ex-
isting programming contract pending
resolution of the complaint. To allow
for sufficient time to consider the peti-
tion for temporary standstill prior to
the expiration of the existing program-
ming contract, the petition for tem-
porary standstill and complaint shall
be filed no later than thirty (30) days
prior to the expiration of the existing
programming contract. In addition to
the requirements of §76.7, the com-
plainant shall have the burden of proof
to demonstrate the following in its pe-
tition:

(i) The complainant is likely to pre-
vail on the merits of its complaint;

(ii) The complainant will suffer irrep-
arable harm absent a stay;

(iii) Grant of a stay will not substan-
tially harm other interested parties;
and

(iv) The public interest favors grant
of a stay.

(2) The defendant multichannel video
programming distributor upon which a
petition for temporary standstill is
served shall answer within ten (10) days
of service of the petition, unless other-
wise directed by the Commission.

(3) If the Commission grants the tem-
porary standstill, the adjudicator de-
ciding the case on the merits (i.e., ei-
ther the Chief, Media Bureau or an ad-
ministrative law judge) will provide for
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§§76.1303-76.1305

remedies that are applied as of the ex-
piration date of the previous program-
ming contract.

[64 FR 6574, Feb. 10, 1999, as amended at 76
FR 60673, Sept. 29, 2011]

§§76.1303-76.1305 [Reserved]

Subpart R—Telecommunications
Act Implementation

SOURCE: 61 FR 18980, Apr. 30, 1996, unless
otherwise noted.

§76.1400 Purpose.

The rules and regulations set forth in
this subpart provide procedures for ad-
ministering certain aspects of cable
regulation. These rules and regulations
provide guidance for operators, sub-
scribers and franchise authorities with
respect to matters that are subject to
immediate implementation under gov-
erning statutes but require specific
regulatory procedures or definitions.

§76.1404 Use of cable facilities by local
exchange carriers.

(a) For purposes of §76.505(d)(2), the
Commission will determine whether
use of a cable operator’s facilities by a
local exchange carrier is reasonably
limited in scope and duration accord-
ing to the procedures in paragraph (b)
of this section.

(b) Based on the record created by
§76.1617 of the rules, the Commission
shall determine whether the local ex-
change carrier’s use of that part of the
transmission facilities of a cable sys-
tem extending from the last multi-use
terminal to the premises of the end
user is reasonably limited in scope and
duration. In making this determina-
tion, the Commission will evaluate
whether the proposed joint use of cable
facilities promotes competition in both
services and facilities, and encourages
long-term investment in telecommuni-
cations infrastructure.

[65 FR 53617, Sept. 5, 2000]
Subpart S—Open Video Systems

SOURCE: 61 FR 28708, June 5, 1996, unless
otherwise noted.
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§76.1500 Definitions.

(a) Open video system. A facility con-
sisting of a set of transmission paths
and associated signal generation, re-
ception, and control equipment that is
designed to provide cable service which
includes video programming and which
is provided to multiple subscribers
within a community, provided that the
Commission has certified that such
system complies with this part.

(b) Open wvideo system operator
(operator). Any person or group of per-
sons who provides cable service over an
open video system and directly or
through one or more affiliates owns a
significant interest in such open video
system, or otherwise controls or is re-
sponsible for the management and op-
eration of such an open video system.

(c) Video programming provider. Any
person or group of persons who has the
right under the copyright laws to se-
lect and contract for carriage of spe-
cific video programming on an open
video system.

(d) Activated channels. This term shall
have the same meaning as provided in
the cable television rules, 47 CFR
76.5(nn).

(e) Shared channel. Any channel that
carries video programming that is se-
lected by more than one video pro-
gramming provider and offered to sub-
scribers.

(f) Cable service. This term shall have
the same meaning as provided in the
cable television rules, 47 CFR 76.5(ff).

(g) Affiliated. For purposes of this
subpart, entities are affiliated if either
entity has an attributable interest in
the other or if a third party has an at-
tributable interest in both entities.

(h) Attributable Interest. The term
“attributable interest’ shall be defined
by reference to the criteria set forth in
Notes 1 through 5 to §76.501 provided,
however, that:

(1) The limited partner and LLC/LLP/
RLLP insulation provisions of Note 2(f)
shall not apply; and

(2) The provisions of Note 2(a) regard-
ing five (b) percent interests shall in-
clude all voting or nonvoting stock or
limited partnership equity interests of
five (5) percent or more.

(i) Other terms. Unless otherwise ex-
pressly stated, words not defined in
this part shall be given their meaning
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